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GANESH DAIVAJNA & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Financial Statements of M/s. Marpol 
Private Limited which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss, and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to t he 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to t he best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a t rue and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2020, and profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance w ith the Standards on Auditing ($A's) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act , 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibi lities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of t he Company in accordance w it h the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under t he provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
eth ica l responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opin ion. 

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") w ith respect to t he preparation of these standalone 
financial st at ements t hat give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 
of the Act . This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequat e account ing records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection a ·on of 
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appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of t he financial statement that give a true and fair view and 

are free from materia l misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
.to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether t he financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards of 
Auditing w ill always detect a material misstatement when it exist s. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence t he economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of t he Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have be,en kept by t he 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited under 
Section 143(8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been 
properly dealt with by us in preparing th is report. 
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d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid st andalone financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Ru le 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

f) On the basis of the w ritten representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

Report in "Annexure B". 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and accord ing to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 26; 

2. The Company did not have any long-term contract s including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable .losses. 

3. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be t ransferred, to 

the Investor Education and Protection Fund by t he Company. 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30th April 2020 

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn.No. 103054W 

Naveen G. Daivaj a 
Partner 

M.No.126231 

UDIN:20126231AAAACF7720 
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Annexure A to the Auditors' Report 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the 
Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we 
report that: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) As informed to us the fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management regularly which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to size of 
the Company and the nature of the assets. No material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. 

( c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable 
properties are held in the name of the Company. 

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals 
during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as 
compared with the book records were not material and have been dealt with in the 
books of accounts. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not 
granted unsecured loans to the Companies, firms or other parties, maintained under 
Section I 89 of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 and hence reporting under Clause (iv) of 
Paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, 
with respect to the loans and investments made. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits in contravention to Section 73 & 74 of 
Companies Act 2013. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or 
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any 
other Tribunal in this regard. 

(vi) The Companies Act, 2013 has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 
Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company and the 
company has been following the same. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / ,accrued in the 
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
ESIC fund, income tax, GST and other material statutory dues have been regularly 
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As 
explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of employees' state 
insurance and duty of excise. 
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, ESIC fund, income tax, GST, cess and other material statutory 
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of duty of 
customs which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any 
dispute. 

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or bonowings from any financial institution, 
banks, government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. Except cash credit account having limit 20 
crores. 

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
repo11ed during the course of our audit. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 
the provisions of Section 197, read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are 
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 
exan1ination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non­
cash transactions with directors or persons colllected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank oflndia Act 1934. 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30th April 2020 

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

:103054W 

UDIN:20126231AAAACF7720 
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls 

Under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") We have 
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Marpol Pvt Ltd ("the Company") 
as of 31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Resvonsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India ('!CAI'). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Resvonsibilitv 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by !CAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the a udit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal · financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's~internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

· (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation offinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent limitations oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30th April 2020 

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN:103054W 

UDIN:20126231AAAACF7720 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2020 

Paniculars 

,lli.ill 
Non-current Assets 

Property, Plan t and Equipment 
Capital Work-in-progress 
Other Intangible Assets 
Financial Assets: 

Other Financial Assets 
Current Tax Assets (Nell 

Tota.I Non-current Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 

Financial Assets: 
Trade Receivables 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash 
Loans 

Other Current Assets 

EQUITY ANP UABIUIIES 
~ 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 

.Ll.a.bl.l1.tlt 
Non-current UablUtles 

Financial llabiht1es: 

Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Total Equity 

Note 

3 
4 

6 
7 
8 
9 
10 

11 
12 

Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) 13 

Current LfabJl itleS 
Financial Liabilities: 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 

Total Non-current liabilities 

Total Outstanding dues of Mlcro Enterprises 
and Small Enterprises 
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than 
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 

Other Financial liabilities 
Other Current liabilities 
Provisions 

Total Current Llablllties 

Total Uabllltles 

Tota.I Equity and Liabilities 

Significant Accounting Policies 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of 
Financial Statements 

As per our Report of even dilte 

Daivajna & Co. 
countants 

( ~~ na _ 

~ Membership No.: 126231 
Firm Reg No. : 1 03054W 
UDlN: 2.0 I l6' .3 1 AAAA C. f' ,, l 0 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30th April, 2020 

14 
1 S 

16 
17 
18 

Ill 

1 to 32 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

5,83.38,041 
4.31,94,981 

6,38,862 

23,09,542 

10 44,81.426 

13,35,56,299 

14,94,01 ,586 
19,33,488 

6,41,725 
55,38,624 

29,10,71,721 

39,55,53,147 

2,99,52,000 
9, 16,23,926 

12,15,75,926 

3,42,599 

3,42,599 

14,20,04,825 

12,32,73,779 

33,73, 115 
19, 19,738 
30,63, 165 

27,36,34,62 1 

27,39,77,220 

39,55,53, t 47 

In Rupees 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

4,08,56,876 
1,62,53,206 

7,96,405 

6,65,151 
1,62,016 

5,87,33,654 

12,69,39,564 

1 5,65,61,249 
7,67,541 

32,73,054 
10,97,356 
68,53,321 

29,54,92,085 

35,42,25,739 

2,99,52,000 
6,26,57,091 
9,26,09,091 

2,03, 1 54 

2,03, 154 

10,50,05,546 

14,43,36,503 

41,87, 180 
46,33,466 
32,50,798 

26, 14, 13,494 

26. 16, 16,648 

35,42,25,739 

For and on behalf of the Bo~rd 
., r I; j 

/7 
P.rashant O Pai 

.,,,) I . _ }./ • ~ c--
/ 7' ' ,-.,~- ' ' ---

I. G.T. Gov!
1
nc!araJ~ 

Director '· Director 
OIN: 08115481 DIN: 08105268 

Date: 30th April, 2020 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st MARCH 2020 

Income 
Revenue frcm Operations 
Other Income 

Expenses 
Cost of Materials Consumed 

Total Income 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in­
trade and Work- in- progress 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amonisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 

Prof it Before Tax 

Tax Expense 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Profit for the Year 

Earnings per Share: 
Basic and Diluted (Rs.) 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Total Expenses 

Total Tax Expense 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of 
Financia S atement 
As per our Repon of even dare 

Membership No, : 1 6231 
Firm Reg No. : 103054W 

UDIN:2O1H,2.3\ A/i/l-1' C.f 112.o 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30th April, 2020 

Note 

19 
20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I 3 

13 

27 

111 

l to 32 

Year ended 
31st March 2020 

59,02.73.659 
29.767 

59,03,03.426 

39, l 8,66,216 

(8.41.472) 

4,55,90, l 35 
1, 13,59, l 29 
1,09,28,904 
9,64,62,357 

55,53,65,269 

3,49,38, 157 

58,31,877 

1,39,445 

59,71,322 

2,89,66,835 

9.67 

In Rupees 

Year ended 
31st March 2019 

68,90,38,289 
4,63, 175 

68,95,01 .463 

51,06,50,202 

(l ,32,62,224) 

4,89,01 ,943 
95, 11,242 

1,00.42,01 l 
10,38,81,825 

66,97,25,000 

1,97, 76.464 

44,00,000 

(14.75,464) 

29,24,536 

1,68,51,928 

S.63 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Prashant D Pal 

Director 

DIN: 0811 5481 

Date: 30th April, 2020 

Director 
DIN: 08105268 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020 

(aultv Share_Cap~ 

B.tlance as at 1st April, 2019 

Change s in Equity Share Capital during 2018-2019 

s·alance as at 31st March 2020 

Chanqes in Equ1lv Share Capital durinq 2018-2019 

Balance as at 31st March 2020 

~E_gul_tv 

Balance as at 1st April, 201 8 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 

Balance as at 1st April. 2019 

Total Compre hensive Income for t he Year 

Balance as at 31st March 2020 

As per our Report of even dt1re. 

Plac~ Margao, Goa 
Date· 30th April, 2020 

General Reserve Retained Earnings 

83,92,356 3,74.12,808 

- 1 ,68,51,928 

83 92 356 <4264735 

- 2,89,66,835 

83.92.356 8.32,31.570 

For and on behalf of the...Board 

A ✓ y - /-f~· I ,,.-v - .., ,,..,_ -
Prashant D Pal G.T. Coyindarajan 
Director Oireclor 
DIN: 08115481 DIN: 08105268 

Date: 30th April, 2020 

In Runeu 

2.99,52,000 

-

2,99,52,000 

-
2 99 52 noo 

In Runees 

Total 

4.58,05,164 

I .68.5 I .928 

• 26 '7 001 

2,89,66,835 

9.16,23.926 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
( 1/\TfMl NI Of CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAll ENDE.D 31st MARCH 2020 

Cinh r low r rom Oorr.tllnQ Actlvn les 

AdJ1,.atmen1~ ro~ 
Oeprec,atlon and Amorir~;t11on Expenses 
Interest Income 
Prov1s1ons for OoublhJI Debts .and 8.1d Debts 
1n1erest Expenso 

Operating Pro fil Before Working Capi tal Changes 

(Increase) In Trade Jnd Olhef Receivables 
(Increase} In Inven tories 

Decrease II'\ Trade Payables. Other Financlal Uabllltie.s and Provrs,ons 

Cash Generated rrom Operations 
Direct Taxes Paid (Net or Refunds) 

Net Cash Flows generated from Operating Activities 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities 
Purchaseof Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets 
(Including Adjustments on Account of Capital Work- In-progress. 
Capital Creditors and Capital Advances) 

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 
Proceeds from Sale / Redemption of Curr ent Investments 
Interest Received 
Proceeds from Fixed Deposits on Maturity 

Net Cash Flows (used In) from Investing Actlvftles 

CMh flows from Financing Activities 
Repayment of lo ng- term Borrowings 
Interest Paid 

Net Cash Flows (used In) Financing Activities 

Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year, the components 
being: 
Cash on Hand 
Cheques on hand 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year, the components being: 
Cash on Hand 
Cheques on hand 

Net Increase / (Decrease:) as disclosed above 

Notes: 
(i) Figures in brackets are outflows / deductions. 

Yu r ended 
31st March. 2020 

3,49,38,157 

1.09,28,90< 
(29,767) 

22,00,000 
1.13,59.129 

S,93,96,423 

67,29,992 
(66, 16,735) 

(2.40,1 4,084) 

(2,39.00,82 7) 

3,54,95,596 
(79,79,403) 

2,75,16, 193 

(5,59,S8,367) 

29,767 
39,38,205 

(5, 19,90,395) 

3,69,99,278 
(1, 13,59, 129) 

2,56,40, 149 

11 65 947 

61 ,746 
7,0S.796 

7,67,S41 

46,008 
18,87,480 

19,33,4S8 

11 65 947 

Year ended 
31st March 2019 

1,97,76, 0::64 

1.00,42.0l 1 
(1,95,170) 
(2.42,693) 

95. 11 ,242 

1.9 1.15,390 

3,88,91.8S4 

(3,<0,35.883) 
(3,83,05 ,8 ) I) 

6.46,89,508 

(56,52,186) 

3,32,39,669 
(25,06,769) 

3,07,32,900 

( 1,71,92,8S8) 

52,954 
5,00,000 
1,95,170 

( 14, l 3,820) 

(1,78,S8,554) 

(4,53,22,778) 
(95, 11,242) 

(S,48,34,020) 

4 1959674 

45,003 
4,26,82,2 12 

4,27,27,21 S 

61,746 
7,05,796 

41959674 

(ii) The above Cash Flow Statement Is prepared under the " Indirect Method" as set out in the lndran Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS- 7) - Statement of Cash Flows 

As p er our Report of e~ n date 

Ip No. : 26231 
Firm Reg No. : 10 54W 

uo1N: to 12.~ z. , AJ\-~ Ac.F112v 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 30th April, 2020 

For and on behalf of the..Board 

V 
Pruhant D P.ai 

Director 
DIN: 08115481 

Date: 30th April, 2 020 

, r .✓• I 
"\ ;:' r -,,_ ... .t 

G.T. C'O\' lndar.aj.an 
Olrech>r 
DIN: 08105268 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
\OTES -orHE FI\A\CIAl STATE\IE\TS FOR lHE YE'\R E\DED 31ST 'vlARCH, 2020 

~ Corporate Information 

\llarpol Private Limited (the ·company') is a private limited company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is 
located at Margao, Goa. The Company Is principally engaged in the manufacturing of Powder. 

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March. 2020 have been reviewed and approved 
by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30th April, 2020. 

NQttJl..;. Basis of preparation 

Statement of compliance 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules , 2015 notified under Section 
133 of Companies Act, 201 3, {the 'Act ' ) and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Details of the Company' s Accounting Policies are included in Note 1. 

2 Functional and Presentation currency 

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which Is also the Company's 
functional currency, All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest rupees , unless otherwise 
indicated. 

3 Basis of measurement 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for Investments 
in mutual funds, non- trade equity shares, bonds and provision for employee defined benefit 
plans. 

4 Use of estimates and Judgements 

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimat ion uncertainty: 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the ind AS requires management to 
make j udgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabllltles and disclosures as at date of the financial stat ements 
and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
cons idered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions and conditions. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing bas is. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in t he period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or In the period of the revision and future periods if the revisio n affects 
both current and future periods. 

i) Crltlcal Judgments 

In the process of applying t he Company's accounting policies, management has made the 
following j udgments, which have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the 
financial statements. 
Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company's defined benefit obligation. 
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management 
cons iders the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of 
the post-employment benefit obligation. 
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Con t ingences and Commitments 

In the normal course of business. contingent llabllltles may arise from litigat ions and other claims 
against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or a re 
very difficult to quantify reliably, we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are 
disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements. Although there can be 
no assurance regarding the f inal outcome of the legal proceedings, we do not expect them to 
have a material ly adverse impact on our financia l position or profitability. 

ii) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of est imation uncertainty at 
the end of the reporting period, that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 
As described in Note 1 (3)(c), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values 
of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. During the current financial 
year, the management determined that there were no changes to the useful lives and residual 
values of the p roperty, plant and equipment. 

Allowances for Doubtful Debts 
The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability 
of trade and other receivables. The identification of doubtful debts equ ires use of judgments and 
estimates. Where the expectat ion Is different from the original estimate, such difference will 
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivab les and doubtful debts expenses In the 
period in which such estimate has been changed. 

Allowances for Inventories 
Management reviews the Inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review Involves comparison 
of the carrying value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The 
purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in t he financial statements 
for any obsolete and slow- moving Items. Management is satisfied that adequate allowance for 
obsolete and slow- moving inventories has been made in the financial statements. 

Liability for Sales Return 
In making judgment for liability for sales return, the management considered the detailed criteria 
for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in Ind AS 18 and in particular, 
whether the Company had transferred to the buyer the significant risk and rewards of ownership 
of the goods. Fol lowing the detailed quantification of the Company's liability towards sales return, 
the management is satisfied that significant risk and rewards have been transferred and that 
recognition of the revenue In the current year Is appropriate, in conjunction with the recogn ition 
of an appropriate liability for sales return. 
Accruals for estimated product returns , which are based on historical experience of actual sa les 
returns and adjustment on account of current market scenario is considered by Company to be 
reliable estimate of future sales returns. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies 

Classification of Assets and Liabilities 

Schedule Ill to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non­
current 

(a) An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

(i) it is expected to be realised in, o r is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's 
normal operating cycle; 

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

(iii) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(iv) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

(b) All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current. 

(c) A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

(i) it Is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

(i ii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer sett lement of the liability for 
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option 
of the counterparty, resul t in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect 
its classification. 

(d) All liabili ties other t han current liabilities shall be classified as non-current. 

2 Operating Cycle 

An operating cycle is t he time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cas h or cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as 
twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is init ially 
measured at its cost and then carried at t he cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated Impairment, If any. 

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its pu rchase price, i ncludi ng 
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducti ng t rade discounts and 
rebates and any costs d irectly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it t o be capable of operating i n the manner intended by management. The 
initial est imate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located is included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. 

The cosr of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of 
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to 
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the 
item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment under const ruction are disclosed as Capital Work-in­
progress . Item of Capital Work- in-progress is carried at cost using t he principles of valuat ion 
of item of property, plant and equipment t ill it is ready for use, the manner in which intended 
by management. 
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Note 111: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment (contd.) 

(b) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

(c) Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of an Item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a 
systematic basis over its useful life. The Company provides depreciation on the straight line 
method. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern In which the 
asset's futu re economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on 
internal technical evaluation. the management believes useful lives of the assets are 
appropriate. The depreciation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if 
there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed 
pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance 
with ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors . 

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that Is significant In relation 
to the total cost of the Item Is depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 
unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end 
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change{s) is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate In accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparat ive 
periods are as follows: 

Useful Lives Useful Lives 

Asset Class 
{in years) {in years) 

- as per Companies - as estimated by the 
Act, 2013 Company 

Buildinas 30-60 30-60 
Plant and EQulpments 10- 20 10-25 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10 
Vehicles 10 10 
Office Equipments 5 5 
Computers 3-6 3-6 
Assets for Scientific Research 10-20 20 
Assets on Ooeratinq Lease NA 5 

Depreciation on additions {disposals) is provided on a pra-rata basis i.e. from {upto) the date 
on which asset is ready for use {disposed off). 

Oepreciation charge for the year is displayed as depreciation on the face of Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

Leasehold lands and leasehold Improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease. 

{d) Disposal 

The carrying amount of an Item of Property, Plant and Equipment Is derecagnlsed an disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss 
arising from the derecognitian of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the Item is de recognised. 
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Note Iii: Sign ificant A ccounting Policies (contd.) 

4 Investment Property 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

Land or building held to earn rentals or for cap ital appreciation or both rather than for use in 
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes: or sale in the 
ordinary course of business ,s recognised as Investment Property. Land held fo r a current ly 
undetermined future use is also recognised as Investment Property. 

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. The cost of an investment · property 
comprises its pu rchase price and any directly attributable expenditure. After initial recognition , 
the Company carries the investment property at the cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment, if any. 

(b) Depreciation 

After initia l recognition, the Company measures all of its investment property in accordance 
with Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment requirements for cost model. The depreciable 
amount of an item of investment property is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. 
The Company provides depreciation on the straight line method. The Company believes that 
straight l ine method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are 
expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on internal technical evaluation, the 
management believes useful lives of the assets are appropriate. The depreciation method is 
reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the 
method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors . 

The depreciation charge for each period is generally recog nised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

The residua l value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end 
and, if expectations differ from p revious estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative 
periods are as follows: 

Useful Lives Useful Lives 

Asset Class 
(in years) (in years) 

- as per Companies - as estimated by 
Act, 20 13 the Company 

Build inos 30-60 30-60 

(c) Fair Value 

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds 
a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location 
and category of the investment property being valued . The fai r value of investment property is 
disclosed in t he Note 3. 

(d) Gain or loss on Disposal 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an Investment Property is recognised in the Statement o f Profit 
and Loss. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

5 Other Intangible Assets 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

An Intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. 
Intangible assets are initially measured at its cos t and tl1en carried at the cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. 

Research and Development 

Research is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new 
scientific o r technical knowledge and understanding. Expenditure incurred on research of an 
internal p roject is recognised as an expense in · Statement of Profit and Loss, when it is 
incurred. 

Development is the application of research find ings or other knowledge to a plan or design for 
the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes, 
systems or services before the start of commercial production or use. An intangible asset 
arising from development is recognised if, and only if, the following criteria are met: 

(a) it is technically feasibile to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for 
use or sale. 
(b) the Company intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it. 
(c) the Company has ability to use or sell the intangible asset. 
(d) the Company can demonstrate how the intangible asset wi ll generate probable future 
economic benefits. 
(e) the Company has adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the 
development and to use or sel l the Intangible asset. 
(f) the Company has ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the 
intangible asset during its development. 

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

(b) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.All other expenditure, including expenditure 
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as 
incurred. 

(c) Amortisation 

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight line method. The Company 
believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic 
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The amortisation method Is reviewed 
at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change In the expected 
pattern of consum ption of the future economic benefits embodied In the asset, the method Is 
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change In an 
accounting estimate In accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors. 

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end 
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) Is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate In accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives as estimated by management are 
as follows: 

Asset Class 
Useful Lives (in years) 

- as estimated b the Com any 
Software 3 Years 
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Note Iii: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

6 Non-current assets or disposal group held for sale 

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for 
sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through 
continuing use. 

Such assets, o r disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. Any resultant loss on a disposal group is allocated first to 
goodwill, and then to remain ing assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that ·no loss is 
allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, and 
biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Company's other 
accounting policies. Losses on initial classificat ion as held for sale and subsequent gains and 
losses on re-measurement are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Once assets class ified as held- for-sale, then Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property 
and Other Intangible Assets are no longer required to be depreciated or amortised. 

7 Employee Benefits 

(a) Short-term Employee Benefits: 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to 
be paid e.g., under short- term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or cons tructive 
obligation to pay th is amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the 
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

(b) Post-Employment Benefits: 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays 
fixed contributions Into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to 
pay further amounts. 

(I) Provident and Family Pension Fund 

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to rece ive post employment benefits in 
respect of provident and family pension fund, in which both the employees and the Company 
make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees' eligible salary 
(currently 12% of employees' eligible salary). The contributions are made to the Regional 
Provident Fund Commission er (RPFC) which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as incurred. 

In respect of contribution to RPFC, the Company has no further obligations beyond making 
the contribution, and hence, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution 
Plan. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
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Note Iii: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

7 Employee Benefits (contd.) 

(b) Post-Employment Benefits (contd.): 

Defined contribution plans (contd.) 

(II) Superannuation 

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in 
respect of superannuation fund in which the Company makes annual contribution at a 
specified percentage of the employees ' eligible salary (currently 15% of employees 'eligible 
salary). The contributions are made to t he Life Insurance Corporat ion of India (LIC). 
Superannuat ion is classified as Defined Contribution Plan as the Company has no further 
obligations beyond making t he contribution. The Company's contribution is recognised as 
;an PlmPnsP in thP <;t;atpmpnt nf Profit ;,nrl I ns<s . 

Defined Benefit Plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined cont ribution 
plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calcu lated by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned In the current and prior 
periods, discountlna that amount and deductinq the fair va lue of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a quali fied actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for 
the Company, the recognised asset is l imited to the present value of economic benefits 
available in the fo rm of any future refunds from the plan or red uctions in future 
contributions to the plan ('the asset ceiling'). In order to calculate the present val ue of 
economic benefits , consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements. 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabil ity, which comprise actuarial gains and 
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceil ing (if 
any, excluding interest). are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company 
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liabil ity (asset) for 
the period by applying t he discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at 
the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liabi lity (asset), taking 
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a 
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses 
rPbtPrl tn n pfinPrl hPnPfit nl~nc:: ;up rPrnnn ic::Prl in C:::t AtPmPnt nf Prnfit Anrl I nc::c:: 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in 
benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or t he gain or 
loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises 
aains and losses on t he sett lement of a defined benefit olan when the settlement occurs. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounti,ig Polici;:,~ (contd.) 

1 E.mployee. Gene.fits (eontd .) 

Defined Benefit Plans (contd .) 

Gratuity 

The Com pany has a.11 obligation toward, gratuity, a defined be nefit retirement p lan covering 
eligible employees. The plan provides a lu mp sum payment to vested employees at 
ret irement. death while in employment or on termination of employment of an a mount 
i,quivalent to I 5 days to one month salary payable for ea.ch completed year of service or part 
thereof in excess of six months depending upon category of employee. Vesting occurs upon 
completion of five years of service. The Company has obtained insurance po licies with .the 
Life Insurance Corporation of Ind ia (UC) and makes an annual contribut ion to UC for 
amounts notifoid by UC. The Company accounts for gratuity benefits payable in future 
based on an independent e1<lernal actuarial valuatio11 carrfed out,it the end of the ve.ar us1ng 
t he projected un it credit method. Actuarial gains a nd losses are recogn ised as Other 
Comprehensive Income. 

Provident Fund Trust 

In respect of contribution to the trust set up by the Company, since the Company ts 
obligated to meet interest shortfall, if · any, with respect to covered employees , such 
em ployee benefit plan is class ified as Defined Benefit Plan . Any obligation in this respect is 
measured on the bas is of independent actuarial valuation. 

(c) Other Long- term Employee 8eneflu - Compans:i.ted Absences 
The Company provides for encashment of leave o r leave with pay subjea !o certain rules . 
The employees a re entitled to accumu late leave subject to certain limits for futu re 
encashment / availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based 
on an independent actuarial valuation carried out at t he end of the year. Actuarial gains and 

losses a re recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

8 Inventories 

(a) Me:.sllremenl of Inventory 

The Co mpany measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

(b) Cost of Inventories 

The cost of inve ntories shall comprise a ll costs of purchase, costs of convers ion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their prese nt location and condition. 

The costs of pu rchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other 
tax.es (other than those subseq uently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorit ies), 
a nd transport, ha ndling and other costs directly aullbutable to the acquisition of finished 
goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are 
ded ucted in dete rmining the costs of purchase. 

The costs ot conVl!rsion of inventories include costs d lr@ctly ,,.lated to the units of 
production and a syste matk allocation of fixed and variable. p rodt,c.tion overhead5 rhat are 
incurred in convertinq materia ls into fin ished qoods , 

Othe r costs are included in the cost of inventories o nly to the exte nt that they a re incurred 
in brinqinq the inventories to the ir present location and condit ion. 

The cost of inve ntories is ass ig ned by weighted average cost formula. The Company uses the 
same cost form ula fo r a ll invento ries having a simila r nature and use to the Compa ny. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd .) 

8 Inventories (Contd.) 

(c) Net realisable value 

"1<1 realisable vnlue " th• eu,mated ,elllng price in the ordinary cou,s• or bu,[ness le,; 1he 
esthll>lcd co,ts of completion and. the est,m•ted co,ts necenory to malu! tM ••I•. et 
realisable value is ascertained for each item of inventories with reference to the selling prices 
of related finished products. 

The practice of writing inventories down bC!low co•t tci net r.eatisnblc value is consis te nt w ith 
the view that assets should not be carried in excess of amounts expected to be rea lised from 
their sale or use. Inventories are usually written down to net realisable value item by item. 
Estimates of net realisable value of finished goods and stock-in - trade are based o n the most. 
reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made, of the amount the inventories 
are expected to real ise. These estimates take into consideration fl uctuations of price or cost 
d irectly relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events 
confirm conditions existing ,t the end of the period. Materials and other supplies held for use 
in th~ proquction of inventories are not written down be low cost if the finished produ,ts in 
wtiich they will be i t1co1 porated are expected lO be sold at or above. cos ,. However, when a. 
d-ecline Jn ,he pnce of l'notenols lndicotes th~t the con of lh• fln,she.d products e1<ceeds ~et 
r12ll.1isa.ble. value, the matet i:.Jls a.re written down to net reall!iable vc1lue. 

Amount of any reversal o f w rite - down o f inventories s ha ll be recog nised as an expense as 
whe n the event occu rs . 

A new assessme nt is made of net realisable value in each subsequent period. When the 
cjrcumstances tha.t previously cao.sed Inventor ies 10 be written dowr\ below cost no longer 
exist or WPte t1 there Is clear evidence of an 111crease in net feal1sable value because of changed 
economic circumstances, the amo unt of the write- down is reversed. Amo unts such reversed 
shall be recong nised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recongnised as an expense 
in the period in which reversal occu rs. 

(d) Valuation of Spare paru, stand- by equipments and servicing eciulpments 
Spore parts. stand- by oqulpmont and sorvfcing equlpn1ent a re recognlsod .H Property, Pla nl 
•nd Equipment if and only If It is probable thot futu re economic be11efits ~ssod.Lted with 
them will now to the Company and their cost can be meas ured reliably. Otherwise such items 
are c lass ified and recogni sed as Inventory. 

9 Cash and Cash Equiva lents 

Cash comprises cash on hand ai,d demand deposits. Cash equ,valM ts are s~ort-term, highly 
liquid investments that a re readily convertibfe to known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to an insig nificant ris k of changes in value. Cash eq uivale nts are held for the purpose of meeting 
short- term cash commitments rather than for investme nt or other purposes. For an investment 
to Qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to a known amount of cash and be 
~ubject to a n insignificant risk of changes ln Vil.lue . Therefore, an investment normally qualif'les 
a.s a ca.sh eq\.l tvalent o nly when it ha.s a short matJ.Jrlty of, Jiay. three months o, less rrorn the. dale 
of acquishion. ~a nk. overdraft.> which ,ire repayable. on demand form an integral pa rt of the 
Com pany' s cash manage ment, hence bank overdrafts are incl uded as a component o f 
cash and c;:qsh equivalent s. 

10 Government-Grant. 

Government gran ts- a.re assistance by govemrnent in the form of 'transfers of resou, ces tu the. 
Company in retu.n fo r p;,sl or future compliance with certain conditions rel,1tlng to th• operating 
activities of th~ Company. Government grants are not be recognised until there is reasonable 
assurance that the Company will comply with the condi t ions attach ing to them and the gran ts 
will be received . Govern me nt g rants are recognised in Statement of Profi t a nd Loss o n a 
systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related 
costs for wh ich the grants are intended to compensate. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably. and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits wi ll be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected fut ure cash flows (representing the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre- tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
Expected fut ure operating losses are not provided for. 

Warranties 

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. 
The provision is based on technical evaluation, historical warranty data and a weighting of all 
possible outcomes by their associated probabilities. 

Restructuring 

A provision for rest ructuring is recognised when the Company has approved a detailed 
formal restructuring plan, and the restructu ring either has commenced or has been 
announced publicly. 

Onerous contracts 
A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived 
by the Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its 
obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the 
present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected 
net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company 
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

12 Revenue Recognition 

Effective 1 April, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts w ith 
customers '. 

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in 
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services . Revenue is adjusted for estimated customer returns, 
rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized as per below 
5 step model: 
• Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 
• Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract 
• Step 3: Determine the transaction price 
• Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 
• Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognized when (or as) a performance obl igation is satisfied, 
i.e. when 'control' of the goods or services underlying the particu lar performance obligation 
is transferred to the customer,i.e. at which time all the following conditions are satisfied: 
• The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risk & rewards of the ownership 
of the goods 
· The company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold 
• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably 
• It is probable that econom ic benefits associated with the transaction wil l flow to the 
company and 
The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2020 

Note Il l. Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

i 2 Revenue Recognit ion (contd.) 

Interest Income 

Interest income is recognised using the effective int erest method as set out in Ind AS 1 09 -
Financial Instruments : Recogn it ion and Measurement, when it is probable that the economic 
benefits associat ed with the transaction w ill flow to the Company and the amount of t he 
revenue can be measured reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortis ed cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or 
financial liabi lities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the 
relevant period. 

Royalty Income 

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the 
re levant agreement when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
t ransaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured 
reliably. 

Dividend Income 

Dividend in come is recognised when right to receive payment is est ablished and it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

13 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates whereas presentation currency is thecurrency in which the financial 
statements are presented. Indian Rupee is the functional as well as presentation currency for 
the Company. 

A foreign currency t ransaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, 
by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional 
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

At the end of each reporting period, fore ign currency monetary items are translated using 
the closing rate whereas non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; 
and non- monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. 

Exchange differences arising on t he settlement of monetary items or on translating 
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial 
recognition during the period or in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non­
monetary item is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, any exchange component of 
that gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or 
loss on a non- monetary item is recognised in Stat ement of Profit and Loss, any exchange 
component of that gain or loss is recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note Il l: Sign ificant Accounting Pol icies (contd.) 

14 Taxation 

Income tax 

Income tax comprises cu rrent tax and deferred tax expense. It is recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combi nation or to an item 
recognised directly in Equity or in Other Com prehensive Income. 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for 
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The 
a:mount of cu rrent tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received 
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to Income taxes. It is measured using tax rates 
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax 
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

a temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 
loss at t he t ime of the transaction; 

b taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be avai lable against wh ich they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong 
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent 
losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that It has sufficient 
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to 
the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be 
realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabllltles wi ll be real ised simultaneously. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

15 'Lease 
Leases of Property, Plant and Equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at 
the lease's inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the 
minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are 
included in borrowings or the financial l iabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated 
between the liability and finance cos t. The f inance. cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability for each period. 

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. 
At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other 
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those 
for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease 
that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are 
recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as 
payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the 
incremental borrowing rate. 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to 
the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases 
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on 
straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless t he payments are structured to increase in 
l ine w ith expected general in flation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost 
increases. 
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Note Ill : Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

16 Financial Instruments 

(a) Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All 
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes 
a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at Fair 
Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), transaction cos ts that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition or issue. 

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a f inancial asset is measured at 

- amortised cost ; 

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment; 

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - equity investment; or 

- FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to thei r initial recognition, except if and in the 
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is meas ured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is 
not designated as at FVTPL: 

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows ; and 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

- the asset is held with in a business model whose obj ect ive is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

- the contractual terms of the f inancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated 
as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the 
Company may irrevocably designate a f inancial asset t hat otherwise meets the requirements to 
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd .) 

16 Financia l Instr uments (contd.) 

(b) Classifica tio n and subsequent measurement (contd.) 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at 
amortised cost 

Debt 
investments a t FVOCI 

Equity investments at 
FVOCI 

These assets a re su bsequent ly measured at fa ir va lue. Net ga ins and 
los ses, including any interest o r d ividend income, are recog ni sed in 
Statemen t of Profit and Loss. 
These assets a re subsequently measured at amortis ed cost using the 
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by 
impairment losses. Interest income. foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impairment a re recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Any gain o r loss on derecognition is recognised in Statement of Profit 
,n,< I 

These assets are subsequently measu red a t fair value. Interest income 
under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impa irment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, 
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

These asset s are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 
recognised as income in Statement of Profit a nd Loss unless the 
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the 
investment. Other net gains a nd losses are recognised in OCI and are 
not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial liabilities: Class ification, s ubsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A fina ncial liability is 
classified as a t FVTPL if it is classifi ed as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated 
as s uc h on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net 
gains a nd losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement o f Profit and Loss. 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

(c) Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset whe n the contractual rights t o the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rig hts to receive the contractua l cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks a nd rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred or in which the Company neither t ransfers nor retains substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership a nd does 
no t retain control of the fi nancial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its bala nce 
s heet, but retains either all or s ubs tantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred as5ets, 
the transferred assets a re not derecognised. 

Financial liabiliti"s 

The Company derecogn ises a fi nancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled, or expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash 
flows u nder t he mod ified terms are substantially differen t. In this case, a new financial liabili_ty 
based on the modified terms is recognised at fa ir value. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability extinguished and t he new financial liability with modified terms is 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss . 

(d) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities a re offset and the net amount presented in the balance 
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 



\1ARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
\ OTES TO THE FI\A~CIAL STATE"1ENTS FOR THE YEAP. E\DED 3 1ST '1ARCH, 2020 

No te Ill: Significant Accounting Polic ies (co ntd .) 

17 Borrowing Cost 
The Company capitalises borro\\ ing costs tha t a,e directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or 
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cos t of that asset. The Company recogn ises other 
borrowing costs as an expense in the period in \vhich it incurs them. Borrowing costs are interest and 
ot her costs that t he Company incurs in connect ion wit h the borrowing of funds including exchange 
differences a rising from fore ig n cu rrency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as a n 
adjustment to inte rest costs. 

A qualifying a sset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale. 

18 Earnings Pe r Share 

Basic earnings per share 

The Company calculates basic earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
equity holders and , if presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity 
holders. 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to o rdinary equity holders 
(the numerator) by the weighted average number of ord inary shares outstanding (the de nominator) 
during the pe riod . 

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and for all periods 
presented sha ll be adjusted for events, other than the conversion of potential ordinary shares , that have 
changed the number of ordinary shares outstanding without a correspond ing change in resources. 

Diluted earnings per share 

The Company calculates diluted earnings per share amounts fo r profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
equity holders and , if presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those eq uity 
holders. 

For the purpose of calculating di luted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary equity holders, and the weighted average number of shares outstanding, fo r the effects of a ll 
d ilutive potential ord inary s hares, if a ny. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share , the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares calculated for calcula ti ng basic earnings per share and adjusted the weighted average number of 
o rdinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of a ll the dilutive 
potential ordinary s hares into ordinary s hares. Dilutive potential ordi nary shares are deemed to have 
been converted into ord inary shares at the beginning of the pe riod or, if later, the date of the issue of 
t he potential ordinary shares. 
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Note Ill: Sjgnjficant Accounting Policies (contd ) 

19 Impairment Loss 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
- fi nancia l assets measured at amortised cost: and 
- financia l assets measured at FV0CI- debt investments. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised 
cost are c redit-impaired. A financial asset is 'creditimpaired ' when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have 
occurred. 

In accordance with Ind AS l 09 - Financial Instruments, the Company follows 'simplified 
approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application 
of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in c redit risk. Rathe r, it 
recog nises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting 
date, right from its initial recognition. 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the 
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the 
Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could 
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financia l 
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply 
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

Impairment of Non Financial Assets 

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cash­
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash· 
generating unit is the higher of its fai r value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfe r a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Value in use is 
based on the estimated future cash flows, d iscounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate. 

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any ind ication 
that an asset is impaired . In assessing whet her there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired, the Company conside rs External as we ll as Internal Source of Information. If any 
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount for the individual 
asset. If, and only if, t he recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss, u nless the asset is carried at revalued amou nt in 
accordance with anot her Standard. 

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company 
determines the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs 
(the asset's cash-generating unit). A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of 
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other 
assets or grou ps of assets. The Company recognises impairment loss for a cash-generating 
unit if, and only if, the recoverab le amount of the cash-generating unit is less t han the 
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit. The Company allocates impairment loss of cash­
generat ing units first to the carrying amou nt of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating 
units, if any, and then, to the ot he r assets of the cash-generating units pro rata on the basis 
of the carrying amount of each asset in the cash-generating unit. These reductions in carrying 
amounts shall be treated as impairment losses on individual assets and recognised 
accordingly. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

20 Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Companies accounting policies and disclosures requ ire the measurement of 
fai r values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities . 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair 
values. This includes a valuation team that has overal l responsibility for overseeing all 
significant fai r value measurements. including Level 3 fair values . and reports direct ly to the 
Chief Financial Officer. 

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation 
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to 
measure fa ir values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtai ned from the third 
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, 
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs 
used in the valuat ion techniques as follows: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included In Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (I.e. as prices) or Indi rectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs) 

When measuring the fair va lue of an asset or a liabi lity, the Company uses observable market 
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair va lue of an asset or a liability fall 
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised 
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

21 Investment in Subsidiaries 
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company. 
The Company accounts for the investments in equity shares of subsidiaries at cost in 
accordance wi th Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements. 
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Note 1: Property, Plint and Equipment 

Gross Block 

Descr iptio n As at 
Additions Deduct ions 

\st April, 2019 

Leasehold Land 29,98,799 - -
(29,98,799) - -

Bulldlnas 3,33,33.490 32,53.448 -
(3,28,23,838) (5,09,652) -

Plant and Ec1ulomcnts 20,36,84,548 2.47 ,00,362 -
(20,36,84,548) - -

Furniture and Fixtures 70,48.971 45,500.00 -
(70,48,971) - -

Vehicles 10.47 ,246 - -
(42,95,152) - (32,47,906) 

Office EqulpmenLs 81,80,304 10,990 -
(81,80, 304) - -

Computers 67 ,69, 122 2,42,226 -
(63,39, 122) (4 ,30,000) -

Total Tanglble Assets 26,30,62,481 2.82,52,526 -
(26,53,70,/34) (9,39,652) (32.47,906) 

1.1. Figures In the brackets are the corresponding figures In respec t or the previous year. 

As at As at 
31st Mar 2020 1 St Aprll, 2019 

29.98,799 G,62,96O 
(29,98,799) (6, 14,007) 

3,65,86,939 1,84 .tl l .427 
(3,33,33,490) (1,73,08,87•1) 

22.83,84,909 18,07, 35,123 
(20,36,84.548) (17,3 1. 19.406) 

70,94,47 1 70, 15,801 
(70,48,97 1) (69, 91 ,683) 

10.47,246 9,21 ,796 
(I 0,4 7,246) (40,31.498) 

81 ,91,294 79,59.267 
(81,80,304) (77,36,545) 

70,11,347 64,69,230 
(67,69,122) (57,46,550) 

29, 13,1 5,006 22,7.7,0'1,60~ 
(26,30,62,480) (21,55,46,()011) 

1.2. No Items of Propeny, Plant and Equlprnenl were pledged as secw ily for liabililies cluring any part of lhe currem and comparalive µcrloc.h., 

Note 2: Other lntanglble Asset s. 

Gross. Block 

Description As at 
Addit ions Deductions 

As at As ar 
I st April, 20 19 3 1st Marcl1. 2020 I Sl April, 2019 

SoflwMe 3 1,30,375 - - 31 ,30,375 23,3J r970 
(31,30,375) - (31,30,375) (2 1,43.901) 

Total Other Intangible Asset:.s 3 1,30,375 - - 31,30,375 23,3!,970 
(3 1,30,375) - - (31,30,375) (21,4),90 1) 

2. 1. Figures In the brackets arc lhe corresponding f igures in rcspec.t of the previous year. 

ht ftnpN'' 

Accumulated Depreciation Net Blt.xJ;: 

AcldillOtlS DccluctiOJlS 
/\S,ll \S,ll 

3 1st ~la r 2020 3 I St t,.1,11 10/0 

48,90l - 7, 11,86) n.~'-"'') 
(48,91 J) - (6,6l,%0) (I:, :'-,_t\ JI\\ 

12.5O.0M - 1.96.<J l ,5 1 I l.68.<t'i 1 )I 

(1 I ,3?,553) - ( 1,84 ,4 1 1)/) { I ,.18,'1) ()t, J) 

81.4 3,639 - 18,9 1.18./bl J.89.rn1 ! I/ 
(76,15.717) - (18.0 7,JS, l 23} (l,2{) 1Q, IA) 

24, 118 - 70.)9.9 19 '., l.'1'l) 

(24, 11 8) - (/0,1).801) (-; i, l /0) 

30,781 - 9.S2.'.>71 ()) ,{)(,l) 

(8$, 250) (31.94,952) (9,21 ,7%) (I ,JS, l f10j 

2,00,473 - 81.59.140 ; J ,'>'> 1 
(2,22.122) - (79.59,267) (),) 1,0 : /) 

•1,73,363 - 69,,12591 (i8/'i'1 
(7,22,679) (G.•l,69,279) c2.ns•J1J 

1,0/,/ I , 1() 1 ) -l,Jt.),/(,,%h 'i ,tt-l,HUI II 
(98,> 1.952) ( 3 1,9•1,9'.>l) (U,U.O>.6O,1) (,1 ,08,',b,K/ /} 

Accumul ated Amortisation Nr:t_Rlock. 

Aclclitlons OeduCIIOll S 
i\S ,ll ,,., ,1 ! 

3 1 ~l Marc h. 7010 ) I 'lit 1\!, lt{ It. /()){) 

, .~1.";4] - )<l ,tll .',II b . !H,Hh/ 

(1.90,069) (ZJ 13,9/0) (7 '.lU. 10',) 

1,$7,543 - ;>4 ,91 ,'.J 13 C1 .J8.M1J 
(1 ,90,069) - (.H.H.Y/0) (/,'lb. 10',) 
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\ote 3 · Other Financial Assets Asat As at 
3 l st March 2020 31st March 2019 

~I ')e'l,Jlf'f ;: f C~,,~ .. !e1-: J Coud 

rl\ed Depos t \\1th Ba1l {;\latunt\ moIe than 12 ~lon ths} 6,65 , 151 

Total - 6,65, 15 1 

Note 4 : Current Tax Assets As at As at 
3 1st March 2020 31st March 2019 

' Income Ta:\ (\Jet of PIO\ISIOllS) 23.09,542 1.62,016 

!Total 23 09 542 l 62 01 6 

Note S: Inventories As at As at 
31st March 2010 31st March 2019 

Raw Materials 5,61,98,228 5,35,48,330 
WorJ..-in-proqress 91,11,072 87,57,5S3 
Finished Goods 4,08, 12,530 4,03,24,S77 
Stores and Spares 2,74,34,468 2,43,09, 104 

Total 13 35 S6299 12 69 39 564 

5.1 No inventones were pledged as securnv for hab1llties during the current and comparable period. 
5.2 Nil amount of lnven1ones were \Witten down to net realisable value during the current and comparable period. 
Surnlarlv, Nil amount of reve,sal of wnte down "as accounted durmg the current and comparable periods. 

Note 6: Trade Receivables As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Secured, Considered Good - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 14,94,0l ,586 1 S,6S,61 ,249 
Siqn1ficant increase in Credit Risk 

Credit Impaired 1,59,61 ,429 1,3 7,6 1 ,429 
Less Loss Allowance (1 59 61 429) <l 376 1 429) 

Total 14 94 01 586 156S 61249 

Note 7: Cash and cash equivalents As at As at 
31st March. 2 020 31st March, 2019 

I Cash on hand 46,008 61,746 
Banls Balances 18,87,480 7,0S,796 

!Total 1933 488 7 67 S4 1 

Note 8: Bank Balance other than Cash and cash equivalents As at As at 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

I Fixed Deposit with Ban, - 32,73 ,054 

!Total - 32 73 0S4 

Note 9: Loans As at As at 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

!Unsecured and Considered Good 
Security De posits 6,4 1,725 10,97,356 

!Total 6 41 725 10 97 356 

Note 1 0: Other Current Assets As at As at 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Unsecured and Considered Good 
Balances with Indirect Tax Authorities 36,S6,780 32,46, 136 
Trade Advances - 16, 15,133 
Prepaid Expenses 18,76,424 19,78,3S0 
Other Receivable 5,420 13,702 

Total 55 38 624 68 53 321 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
r-.iOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

Note 11: Share Capital 

I .Authorised Share Capital (Rs) 
Par Value per Share (Rs) 
Number of Equ ity Shares 

2. lssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up (Rs) 

Par Value per Share (Rs) 
Number of Equ ity Shares 

Details o f Shareholders holding more than 5% of 
shares: 

Kansai Nero lac Paints Limited 
Kam lesh A. Pai Panandiker (HUF) 
Vishvanath . A. Pai Panandiker (HUF) 
Shambhu A. Pai Panandiker (HUF) 
Shanu A. Pai Panandiker (HUF) 
Ramchandra A. Pai Pa nand iker (HUF) 
Vishvanath P Panandike r Tdg .& Inv.Co. Pvt. Ltd. 
Veda P Panand ikerTdg . & Inv. Co . Pvt . Ltd. 
Shanu P PanandikerTrdg. & Inv. Co. Pvt. Ltd. 
Ramchand ra P Panand iker Tdg .& Inv.Co.Pvt.Ltd. 
Atmaram P PalondicarTrdg . & Inv. Co. Pvt. Ltd . 

4.Aggregated number of bonus share JSsued during 
the period of five years immediately preceding t he 
repo ning date by capitalisation of security premium 
reserve 

As at 
31 st March, 2 020 

% 

100% 
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

5,00,00,000 
10 

50,00,000 

2,99,52,000 

10 
29,95,200 

No of 
Shares 

29,95,200 
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
NII 

In Rupees 

As at 
31 st March, 2019 

% 

-
13.33% 
12 .02% 
9.01% 
8.97% 
8.97% 
8.65% 
8.09% 
6.61 % 
6.61 % 
6.09% 

5 ,00,00,000 
10 

50,00,000 

2,99,52,000 

10 
29,95,200 

No of 
Shares 

-
3,99,200 
3,60,000 
2 ,70,000 
2,68,800 
2,68,800 
2,59,200 
2,42,400 
1,98,000 
1,98,000 
1,82,400 

Nil 

5.The Company has issued one class of shares , i.e. equity shares , which enjoys similar rights in respect of 

voting , payment of dividend and repayment of capital. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equ ity 

shares w ill be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all 

p refe rential amounts in proponion to t he number of equity shares held . 

6. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding : 

Number of shares at the beginning of the yea r 
Issued du ring the year 

29,95,200 29,95,200 

Number of shares at the end o f the year 29,95,200 29,95",200 

?.Capital Management: 
For the purpose of t he Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company's policy is to maintain 
a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the levels of dividends 
to equity shareho lders. The Company is not subject to any eXlernally imposed capital requirements. 



V.\RPOL PRIVATE U',,HTED 
\OTES TO THE FIM.\OAL STATE."(8'/TS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

\ote 12 - Other Equity 
General Reserve Retained EJrnlngs Tota l 

&.ilanceu at lstAorll. 2010 83.92,356 3.71 12.808 4.58,05.16< 

Profit for the ye.r 1.6851.928 1.68.51.928 

Sala.nee u at 31st March. 2019 ., ., "' >< .,. no, 

Profh for the period - 2.89.66,835 2.89,66.835 

&..lance a.sat 31st March, 2020 83,92,356 8,32,31 ,S-70 9, 16,23,926 

Note 13· 1ncomeTaxes Ye.u ended 31 Year ended 31 
March, 2020 March, 2019 

.. The m.1Jor components of income tax expense for the year are a.s under: 

(i) 
Income t ax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Current tuc. 
In respe<t of curre111 yea, 58.31.877 44,00,000 

Deferred t.u:: 
In respec t of cunet11 year 1,39,445 (14,75,464) 

Income t.u: expense recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 59,71,322 29,24,S36 

(ii) Income tax expense recognised In OCI 
Deferred t.tx expense o n reme,nurements of defined benefit plans - -
Income tax expc;nse recognised In OCI - -

.. Reconclllatlon of tax expense And the accounting proflt for the year Is as 
under: 

Profit before 1.-ix 3,49,38, 157 1,97,76,464 

Income tax expe11secakul.-i1ed at 27 .8~ (P.Y. 34.944:b1 97, 19,79S 69,10,683 

Olhers (37,48.473) (39,86, 152) 

TD{;al 59,71,322 29,24,536 

Tiilx exoense as oer St.ttement or Proflt and Loss S9 71 322 29 24 536 

In pursu<ince to sec1ion I 15BAA or Income Tax Act, 1961 announced ~ • Gcwernmenl of India 1hrough Taxation Uw (Amendmen1) 0 1dinance, 2019, the Comp.tnv has an 
i rre\:ocable option or shirting 10 lowe, Corporate Tax Rate at 22S6 plus applicable Surcharges and Cess and simultaneously forego cer1ain lax incentives including the 
c1ddi1ional depredation on plant and mac hfnerv acquired/ to be acquired by the Comoanv. Accordtnotv. the Company shall excerciSe thiS option for currenl Ffn;mclal Ye.-i r. 
Hence !he company has computed the lax expenses of 1he current Financial Year as per the lower CorJX)rate Income Tax Regime announced under Se<: I 15BAA or the 
lncomeTuu\ct, 1961. 

c. The maJOf componl!f!U of deferred ax Olabllltles) / as.sets arisTng on account of liming drffere.nces are as follows: 

Ba l.1nce Profit and 
00 &alince 

Particula~ Sheet Le<s Sheet 
01.04.2018 2018-2019 2011-2019 31.03.2019 

Difference between written down value/ capi tal work in progress of PropeftV, 16,78,618 (14,75,464) - 2,03, 154 
Plant and Equipment as per the bOoks of accoums and Income Tax Acl, 1961. 

Deferred tax (expense) / Income 
lu- n..r ..... .,.,, tax i! .. ., . 167861~ f14 75 %41 - 2 03 154 

Ba lance Profit and 00 Balance 
Panlculars Sheet O<S <h-

01.04.2019 2019-2020 2019- 2020 31 .03.2020 

Difference between written down value / capital work in prog1ess of Propertv, 2,03, 154 1,39,445 - 3.42.599 
Plarn and Equipment as per the bool:s of accoums and Income Tax Act. 1961. 

Deferred tax (o:pcnse) / Income 
I 1.i..t oete,....,.,, tax ..... ,_ 

2 03 1S4 I 39 445 - 3 42 599 



vlARPOL PRIVATE LIM ITED 
NOTES TO THE FINA NCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

In Rupees 

Nole 14 : Borrowings As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Working Capital Loan 14,20,04 ,825 1 0,50,05,546 

Total 14,20,04 ,82 5 10,50,05 ,546 

Note'l 5: Trade Payables As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Trade Payables 
Payables to Micro and Small Enterprises* - -
Payables to Others 12,32,73,779 14,43,36,503 

Total 12,32,73,779 14,43,36,503 

*Based on the information and explaination available with management, there are no amounts due to the 
suppliers covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

Note 16: Other Financial llabllltles As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Trade Deposits 32,44,340 32,94,339 

Creditors for Capital Goods 1,28,775 8,92,841 

Total 33,73, 115 41 ,87,180 

Note 1 7: Other Current Liabilities As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Other Statutory Payables 9,49,852 36,38,698 

Trade Rece ivables with Credit Balance 9,69,886 9,94,768 

Total 19, 19,738 46,33,466 

Note 18: Provis ions As at As at 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Provision for Compensated Absences 6,54,845 7,60,095 
Provis ion for Gratuity 24,08,320 24,90,703 

Total 30,63, 165 32,50,798 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

In Rupees 

Note 19: Revenue from Operations Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Sa le of Products 58,88,80,503 68,64,87, 186 

Other Operat ing Revenues 
Sale of Scrap 13,93, 155 25,06,611 
Others - 44,492 

13,93, 155 25,51, 103 

Total 59 02,73 659 68,90 3& 289 

Note 20: Other Income Year ended Year ended 
3 1st March 2020 31st March 201 9 

Interest Income 
Interest on Loans and Deposit 29,767 1,95, 170 

29,767 1,95 ,170 

Other Non operating Income 
Insurance Claims Received - 2,68,005 

- 2,68,005 

Total 29 767 4 63 175 



W\RPOL PRIVATE Ll\11TED 
,oTE:- TO THE FI \AJ\CIAL 5TATE\1E,'TS FOR PERIOD E\ DED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

In R.u;:>ees 
\ote 21 Cost of \1;aterl;a!s Consumed Ve.1r~ded Year endc:d 

31st March, 2020 31st March. 2019 

Ra, .. \latenal Comumec! 

Openwg s:od.. S.21,87.161 3.56.23.098 

.\dd r'tuchase 38.05.17.655 5 I .19.51.705 
Less Clos ma Stoel.. 5.47.25.288 S.21.87.161 

37.19.79.528 49,53.87,642 

Pad..ing Malena! Consumed 
opening Stocl.. J 3,61.189 5.45,H& 
Acid Pu,chase 1.39,98.480 1.60.78.403 
Less Cl0!1111g SlocJ.. 14,72,98 1 13.61,189 

1,38.86.688 1,52,62.560 

Tot>! 391866216 51 06 so 202 

Note 22: Changes In Inventories of finished Goods, Stock-in-
trade and work-In- progress 

Opening Stoel.. 
finished Goods 4 ,03,24,577 2,36,03,672 
Work-ln- proqress 87,57,553 1,22, 16,234 

4,90.82,130 3,58, 19,906 
Less· Closing Stock 

Finished Goods 4 ,08,12.530 4,03.24.577 
wor~- ln- p1oc:11ess 91.1 l.072 87.57,553 

4 ,99, 23,602 4,90,62, 130 

Total (8.41,472) ( I ,32,62,224) 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

Note 23: Employee Benef its Expense 

Sa laries and Wages 
Contribution lo Provident and Other Funds 
Staff Welfare Expense 

Total 

Note 24: Depreciation and Amortisation 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets 

Total 

Note 25: Other Expenses 

Consu mption of Stores and Spare Parts 
Power and Fuel 
Repairs to Buildings 
Repairs to Machinery 
Freight and Forwarding Charges 
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 
Rent 
Lega l & Professional Fees 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

Total 

Note 25. 1: Payment to Statutory Auditors' 

Auditors ' Remuneration exclud ing Service Tax/ GST 
(Included in Miscellaneous Exnenses in Note 25) 
As Auditor 
Statutory Audit Fees 

Report under Section 44AB o f the Income tax Act, 1961 
In other capacity 
Certification 
Others 
Total 

Year ended 
31st March. 2020 

3,60,09. 1 S9 
69,32.44 7 
26.48.529 

45590135 

Year ended 
31st March 2020 

1,07,71.361 
1,57,543 

1 09 28 904 

Year ended 
31st March 2020 

1,3 1,06,85 1 
2.45,52. 140 

4,04,631 
67,96,687 

2, 14,46,766 
7,04,059 

21,90,813 
16,72,698 
13,75,923 

2 .42, 11 .790 

9 64 62 357 

4,68,890 

-

58, 133 
-

5 27 023 

In Rupees 

Year ended 
30th March 2019 

4 ,05,59.6 I 2 
5 6,69.164 
26.73.167 

4 89 01 943 

Year ended 
30th March 2019 

98,51 ,952 
1,90,069 

1 00 42 021 

Year ended 
30th March 2019 

1,63,20,926 
2 ,88,26,058 

1,63,073 
49,60,524 

2,38,81,351 
2 , 18,602 

I 6,90.494 
13,24,578 

7,47,722 
2,57,48,499 

103881 825 

4,33,800 

-

58,133 
-

4 91 933 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

Note 26: Contingent Liabilities and commitments (to the 
ex tent not provided for) 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt: 

Sales Tax & Income Tax 

The Company has made adequate provisions in the accounts 
for claims against the Company related to direct and indirect 
taxe.s matters, except for certain claims not acknowledged as 
debts, and Assessment Year 2017- 20 18 Rs. 11,62,460/- LESS 
@20% Paid Rs . 2 ,32,492 /- = 929968 
Sales Tax 
Amount totalling to Rs. 59,66,949/- from the Sales Tax 
Au thorities, a demand of sales tax for non-submission of Form 
'C' for the year 2004- 05. 
Income Tax 
Amount totalling to Rs. 27,70 ,026/- from the Income Tax 
Authorities, a demand notice for assessment year 2003- 2004 
Rs. 14,57,756 /- and 2010- 11 Rs. 13,12,270/ -
The Company's management is of the opinion that ultimate 
liabi lity in respect of these litigations shall not exceed the 
amount provided in books of account, and shall not have any 
material adverse effect on the Company's operation and 

Excise 
Appeal No. E/1 15 /20 11 and E/ 579/ 201 1 Against OIA No. 
GOA/ CEX/G5K/ I 13 & I 14 Dt.30. I I. IO - Excise du ty difference 
of Himachal Pradesh Bad di 

Duty and Interest 
Duty & Interest to be paid for non- fulfilment of Export 
Obligation against EPCG Licence No 73000 I 054I 1.9.2010 and 
173000 1054 /1 5.9.2010 as per letter no S- 99/ 25 / 20 18 - Appg 
(Gr- 7)4896 dt 6.8.2019 

Corporate guarantee 
Counter Guarantees to bank in respect of Bank Guarantees 
issued to government authorities and others 

Letter of Credit opened with HDFC Bank, Margao, Goa 

Note 27: Ea rnings Per Equity Share 

Numerator: 

Profi t attributable to Equity Shareholders (~ in Crores) 

Denominator: 
Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares at the 
beginning and end of the year 

Basic and Diluted Earninas oer Eauitv Share (In f ) 

Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

96,66,943 

27,50,923 

1,06,99,005 

35,34,000 

5 3, 77,848 

2, 13,29,714 

Year e nded 
31st March 2020 

2,89,66,835 

29,95,200.00 

9.67 

In Rupees 

Year end ed 
31st March, 20 19 

&7,36,975 

27,5 0,923 

35,34,000 

1,22,18,41B 

2, 72,40,3 16 

Year ended 
31st March 2019 

1,68,5 1,928 

29,95,200.00 

5.63 



W\RPOL PRIVATE U'ilTED 
~OTES TO THE FIS:A\CIAL STATE\1E',TS FOR PERIOD E\DED 31ST \ \ARC,! 2020 

, ote U· Related Party Disclosures 

.l, '<',t'l">?d pa;!\ ', 'I ;lt'i')O Qr ~1:h(\ 1h,c1• \ d'"d JO• f> ~W•!\ tho:'.!~ ;:repdflll:J !lS ;1.;•1:.01 '):,Her-e·· •; 

,c1) ·, pe!'\on o ~ c o<,e member o' •··at pel'\on·s fil~d\ 15 reidted ~o a --eport1--:g er,Ht\ f tha· p1!~011 
(:) has contra' or Jomt :::om col of 11:e 1e;ion111g er111:\ 
(11) has \lq111fo:.t": mnllen:::e O\er the reporung e,1,t\. 01 
1,111) 1<, a mPmh,.r nl lh,. kl"\ "!\i'l!'<llJemenl p~:,oi 11" d thP ft1'Jlfl"' ,ng t"11 l1t~ 01 of a parf"nt ot !hi" rPport,n9 i>n111~ 

(bl An enrn~ ,s related to a reporti119 ent,t\ rf ,111'r of 1he follo-..,,mg cona 11011., appl1C$ 
(1} The enll!\ ar:d 1he reponmg enut\ are members o' 1he same group (\\h1ch means thal each parent, subsidial) and 

fe!IO\-.. subs1di,1r\ ts rclatec: to the others). 
{ul One ecllltJ 1s ,w asso<Late or Joint \.Clllure of the other enlll'\ !or an a,;soc1ate or JOlnl ~~niurc of d member of a 
qroup o f ,duch the other ent1t\ 1s a member). 
{in) Bot h enttUl'.'s Me JOllll \•enwres of 1he same 11\ird pi111\-
(1v) One en11r., 15 a JOIIII ve111ure of a rhtrd entll \ and the other entity ,s au a,;soc ldl e of lhe 1h1rd en1 lt\ 
(v) The. e.11 111, ,s" pos1-employment benefit pta11 for 1hi:- benel!I of emploVees of either 1he 1ey(n tu1g entn\ o r an enuty 
rela1ed to the report ing e11111y. Ir 1he report ing entlfy is Itself such a plan, 1he sponsonng employers are also related to 
1he 1eport111g em1ty. 
(v1) The enut) ,s con1rolled or Joi1111y co111rolled by a person 1de11t1f1ed 111 (a). 
(\<1i) A per,;on iden11f1ed in (a)(ij has significant influence O\<er the entity or is a member of the "-e<i' management 
pe~onnel or the e11111r• (or of a parent of the enmy). 
(vm) The entity, or any member of a group of which 11 ts a part. prov ides key management personnel servtees to the 
reporting en111y or to 1he parent of 1he reponing entir.,1• 

A related patty transaction ,s a transfer of resources , services or obliga1ions betw~n a repomng entity and a related 
party, regardless of whether a price 1s charged. 

Parent and ultimate controlling entitv 

Name % Shareholdina Type Principal Place of 
2020 2019 ACIIVllies lncorn,v-:,t1on 

Kansai Paints Co. ltd, Japan Ultimate Manufacturing Japan 
0 0 controlling Paints 

Kansai Nerolac Pairus Ltd. 100 100 Parent Manufacturmg India 
p,,_,. 

Kansai Pamts Co., ltd. ts 1he immediate and ultimate holding company of Kansai Nerolac Pa1111s Ltd. and is based and 
listed in Japan. Fmanc1al S1atemcn1s of Kansai Pai111s Co., Ltd. are avai lable III public domain. 

Key management personnel are those persons ha....i ng authority and respo11s ib,l1ty for planning, directing and 
controllmg the ac1ivities of the en1i1y, directly or indirectly. indud1119 any director (whether executi\.e or otherwise) of 
that ent ity. Key management personnel i ncludes Mr. Prashant 0. Pai, Mr. G. T. Govindarajan and Mr. Rohit P. 
Panandiker. 

Related Partv Transactions· In Rtrµec.,; 

T ;-- R.-:1 tion 0 ,n,o 

Sale of flnished goods/Intermediates 

-Kansai Nerolac Pa1111s Ltd. Parent entity 2,64,64,454 6 ,08,09,941 

Purcha,se of Goods 

-K.l~a• Nerolac Paints ltd. Parent entity 8,48,54,45 I 4814S325.00 

Amount of outstanding balances, including commitments, 
thei r terms and condit ions, including whether they ... 
secured, and the nature of the c.onsideraUon to be provided 
in settlement 

Receivable as at Year End 
Kansai Nerolac Pai111s Ltd. Parent enlitv 42,61.660 62,38.265 

Payable as at Year End 
Kansai Nerolac Pa1n1s Ltd. Parent enritv S,6S.73.443 4 ,85.54.648 
Kev ManaAement Personnel 
(al short-term emplovee benefits - 24 ,09,120 

Related Partv Transactions: 
Related pany Hansaction~ were made on te1ms equivalent to those 1ha1 prevail in an arm's leng1h transactions. 



YIARPOL PRIV~TE LI\IITED 
\OT"..5 TO THE Fl\~\CIAL 5TATE'1E\TS FDR PE~IOD E",DED 'll5T \IARCH 2020 

'1ott 29 fin.1nc ial Instruments; Fair values and Risk \ 1anage("1ent 

(A) Accounting Clau1f1cations ilnd Fi.Ir V~lues 

ihe- fcll::r.•. 'lr, ta.be ,;·;C\\S :11e CJ.tf\lflg .tfflOLilll', ,lnOfa \,l ,ies o f fmJTIC,dl •fiS!::'lS clll(:' ,l!KIJ J,i~lf{I~. lltcht<:mg U1eu le-. ets In t:)e la,t \ d \,.;e h·e1a1C11\ 

I Year I 
I Other financial assets ' I 

At FVTPL HabUitlP.s - ~ mortised Level l I LeveJ 2 I Level 3 Total 

f i nancial Assets not measured at Falr Va.lue 

No11-cw1elll Assets OrJ1er I 2020 I I I I I -
F1n.1nc1,1I ;\S\Cl'i (i\ote 3) I 2019 I - I 6.6s . 151 I I I 6.65, 151 

C111rentAssca Trade Receivables I 2020 I - I 14,94,0l.586 I I I 14 94,01,586 
(Note6) I 2019 I I 15,65,6 1,249 I I I 1.5.65,61,249 

Current Assets· Cash and Cash I 2020 I - I 19,33.488 I I I 19,33,488 
Equrvalent (Note 7) I 2019 I - I 7.67.54 l I I I 7,67,541 

Current Assets: Bank Balances I 2020 I - I - I I I -
other than Cash and cash I 20 19 I I 32,73.054 I I I Eauivalent (Note 8) - 32,73,0 54 

Current A ssels. Loan s (Note 9) I 2020 I - I 6,41J25 I I I 6,41,725 
I 201 9 I - I 10.97.356 I I I 10,97,3S6 

Financial Uabilltles not mea.sured at Fair Value 

Cw renc Uabdlties; Borra.\olngs I 2020 I I 14, 20.04.s2s I I I 14,20.04.82S 
(Note 14) I 201 9 I I 10,50.05,546 I I I 10,50,05,546 

Current Liabrlrt1cs Trade Pay.able I 2020 I - I 12.32. 73 .779 I I I 12. 32,7 3,779 
(Note I S) I 201 9 I - I l4.43.36.S03 I I I 14.43,36,50) 

Current Llabilitles· 01l1er Financial I 2020 I - I 33, 73. 1 15 I I I 33,73, 115 
Uabihl1es (Note 16) I 2019 I - I 41 ,81.180 I I I 41 .87. 180 



\1ARPOL PRIVATE Ll\1ITED 
\OTES TO THE flNANCIAL STATEME\TS FOR PERIOD E\DED 31 ST MARCH 2020 

tvne 29 Etoancial lnsuumentS' f;a\r values and Risk. Management (contd,) 
(Bl Flnanc:ia f Risk Management 

-ht- Co oo:n, has e, poSll'e :o the lollo\\, 19 11sl..s .111smg f1om 'mit1c1i1,1 111st,umertH 
~ C1ed,• Risk 
- Uquidu, Risi,. 
• \1a1J...et R1sl 

(i) Risk Management Framework 

R.•~l t-.1ana<;t~me,n Co,mmttec.:- o\'e1see; the man.ig~menl or lhesr ml.s. 11.lanayt:rnenl I'> }uµported by Ris i-. \lanaqemclll Corrnmltt.:.'e lh aldd\ rses 011 
financ ial 11sks and 1he appropriate f111anual 11;!,.. \,Jovernam.e f1a111ewo1I.. fo1 the Compan,. n,e Risi,.. \lanagemelll Conurnllee p1ov1d~ .ass111.u1u!' to the 
m.1na9en1em that Companv's risk a.CT.1\l[ies a,e {JO\,ef!led b\ app,opn,ue pohoes .l.11(1 pfocedu,es and that f111anc1al m,l..s are 1den11f1ed, measuted and 
managed an accord,rnce with the Companv'c, µolmec, and 11!.I.. obJec.L1\e!.. 

The Company's Rist.. Management Policies are established to 1den11fy and analvses t he nsl..s faced by the Company to set appropnate nsl.. hm1ts and 
controls and to monuor risl..s and adherence to hm1ts. R1-.I.. M;uugement Pohc1es and Systems are re\1C\\ed regularlv to reflec1 changes m market 
cond1t1ons and the Company'-. ac11v1t1es. The Company, through its trainmg and management -.ta .. ndard-. and procedures, aims to mamtain a 
d1-.e1pl1ned and constructive control env1romnent 111 which all employees understand their role-. 
.a.nd obhgatiom. 

(ii) Credit Risk 

Credit Risk 1s the mk of financial loss to the Company 1f a customer or counterparty to a financial i nstrument fails to meet its comractual obhgations, 
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, loans and investments in debt securities. The carr\,;ng amounts of financial 
assets 1epresem the maximum credit ri sk e'<posure. 

Trade Receivables and Loans: 

The Company's exposure to credit risk is mfluenced mainly by the mdividual characteristics of each customer. The Risk Managemelll Committee has 
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credinvorthiness before the Company's standard payment and 
det1vety term-. and condiuons are offered. The Company's review includes fmancial -. tatement'>, credit .agency information, industry information and 
in some cases bank references. Sales hmits are estabhshed for ea.ch customer and re-,,,1iewed 
constantly. Any sales exceeding those Hm1ts requne approval from the management. 

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits 

Credi t risks from balances with banks and rmancial institutions Is managed by the Company's Treasury Department in acc:ordance with the 
Company's policy. Investments of surplus fund-. are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterpartv. 
The hmus a,e set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mnigate Financial loss thmugh counterparry's potential failure to make 
payments. 

(iii) Liquidity Risk 

Liquidi ty risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obl igations associated wi th its financial liab1ltt1es that are settled by 
del1vermg cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient 
hqu1dity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 1ncumng unacceptable losses or riskmg 
damage to the Company's reputation. 

Maturities of Financial Liabilities: 
The table below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturing grouping based on their contractual maturities: 

In Ruoees 

Year ended 
On Upto 3 months to 6 months 1 year to 3 years and 

Total demand 3 months 6 months to 1 year 2 years above 

Sorrowmgs 31 - 03- 2020 14 20 04 825 14 20 04 825 
l -"3-2019 10 50 05 546 10 SO OS 546 

Trade Payables 31-03 - 2020 12 32 73 779 12 32 73 779 
31 - 03- 2019 14 43 36 503 14 43 36 503 

Other Financial 31 - 03- 2020 l 28 775 32 44 340 3373115 
Liabilities 31 - 03- 2019 8 ,92,841 32 94 339 41 ,87,1 80 

(iv) Market Risk 

Market risl.. is t he risk t hat the fait value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of chilflges 1n market pnces. Mart.et price 
comprisl!S rhree rypes of nsks mteresr rate risk, currenC\1 ml.. and other pnce risk, such as equity pnce nsk and commoditv plice risk. The obJect,ve 
of market nsk management 1s to manage .a.nd control market nsk exposures within acceptable para.meters, while opt1m121ng the return. In respect of 
monetarv assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company's policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable 
level. 
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•'-wll! 29- Ei?i"►li l 1□ urumeon- fair valuu and g,ill; MiDiRIHJltnl kootd > 

(C) V.tlua tion ttchnlqu u ;and s ignificant unobstrY.tble Inputs 

V.tkJ.tUon tr.chnlqufl: S)Qnifiunt uno!>s~rvable 
lnpub 

lnter-rel.ttionshlp bet'N«n 
sh;in lfiunt unobsernble Inputs .tnd fair value menurement 

Other '-01'1-currE'fll ,nuts 
IT'l\'C'SU'Tlent measured .ti 
offl10fhif<f CO!>I 

Dn.coun1ed cash l loY.s The ,-a!ual!on model - Foree.tu A.Mui.I re,.enue Gemtr.tll>,, a changes In lhe annual ,eo.·enue growth u1e 1s 

Cuuen1 inveHmena - 1n 

mutual funds 

caa1c!<H the o-01Hh accompanied sm1J.u dun()!? in 
pr~ent ,·.1h1e of e \ pecl@d recl!ip11p,1,men1 - roreus t ESIOA gro~th mMgin EBIOA m.1rgin 
d iscounted using approp11.;11e dlscounung - Rid. ,1dJUslmf:nt d lscoun1ed 
'-'les.. rate 

The f,tn values of uwes tm@nts m Not APPhc.able NOi apphcable 
mutual fund units is based on the ne1 use: 
1•alue l'NAV') as uaied by the Issuers of thMe 
m utual fund units in 1he published 
su.1emen1s -'S at Balance Sheet date. NAV 

represents the price oil v.hk h lhe is1,ue, " 111 
issue furlhtr unit$ of mutlUI fund and lhe 
price al \\hich iHuEH wttl redl'!t.m such unils 
from lhe inve!.lon 

The Compa.ny d ettttmined 1he fair va.lue musurements of inv('l;lments -unquoled ca1egonsed In Level 2 based on price a.17eed In a ule tramaction ber,ireen unrel.\ted parties. 

C~ 1,·i11g amounts of ush a.nd cash equiv..ilents, tr..ide ,ecetvoib!M, loan~ a.nd 1tade payablei. a.s at 31st Ma.rch, 2019 ;md 31st March. 2018 app101dmoile the fair value. Difference 
between ca.trying amounts and f.lr values of bank deposiu. earma.11..ed bala.nc('I; v.ith banl..s. Olher Ona.ncla.l asset~. other rlnaocioil liabilllies .ind borrowings subsequently 
mea~ured at .amortised cost 1s no t significant In uch of thl" \'eilrs pr6enled. 



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 30: Segment Reporting 

The Management Committee of the Company, approved by the Board of Directors performs the function of allotment 
of resources and assessment of performance of the Company. Considering the level of activi t ies performed, frequency 
of their meetings and level of final ity of their decisions, the Company has identified that Chief Operating Decision 
Maker function is being performed by the Management Committee. The financial informat ion presented to the 
Management Committee in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the annual operating plan is on a 
consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As the Company's business activity falls within a single 
business segment viz. 'Paints' and the sales substantially being in the domestic market, the f inancial statement are 
reflective of the information required by Ind AS l 08 "Operating Segments". 

Note 31: 

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the year 
2019-20, to the extent the Company has received intimation from the "Suppliers" regarding their status under the Act. 

As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

(i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
each supplier at the end of each accounting year (but within due 
date as per the MSMED Act) 

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise - -
Interest due on above - -

(ii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along- with 
the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during the period - -

(iii) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
period) but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006. - -

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 

(v) 

each accounting year - -

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to 
the small enternrises - -
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been 1dent1f1ed on the 

basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 32 : 
Previous period figures have been re-grouped/ re-classified wherever necessary to conform current period's 
classification. 

As per our Report of even date 
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